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          2                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Good

          3  afternoon. Today the Committee on Consumer Affairs

          4  will hold an initial hearing on Intro. No. 529, a

          5  bill that requires all travel agencies to register

          6  with DCA and post a bond or participate in a fund

          7  administered by DCA so that consumers who pay for

          8  travel services and do not receive those services

          9  can be reimbursed if the travel agency they paid

         10  goes out of business.

         11                 Additionally, the bill requires DCA

         12  to maintain complaint information on travel agencies

         13  as it does with licensees. This is the first hearing

         14  on this bill and the first time we have been

         15  involved in trying to regulate this industry. The

         16  travel industry, both providing for New Yorkers and

         17  for the tourists who visit us, is very important to

         18  us and we want to be sure that we don't hurt those

         19  agents who we have learned to rely on.

         20                 Since this hearing was announced, we

         21  have heard from lots of travel agents, and we will

         22  undoubtedly be making significant changes in this

         23  legislation if we choose to go forward.

         24                 This is the first hearing and we are

         25  open to hearing from all of you. We were trying to
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          2  address a problem that was documented by channel 9

          3  and that DCA has received numerous complaints about

          4  it.

          5                 As we understand it, travel agencies,

          6  especially in immigrant communities, are taking

          7  large amounts of cash for plane tickets and then

          8  closing their doors, declaring bankruptcy and

          9  failing to provide their customers with the tickets

         10  they struggled to pay for.

         11                 As we listen to each other today, I

         12  would be very happy to hear suggestions as to how to

         13  combat this problem if you believe that the bill

         14  will create difficulties for you.

         15                 First, w will view the Channel 9

         16  segment on this problem, and then I will ask the

         17  Commissioner of DCA when he arrives to come up, and

         18  then we will here from anyone who would like to

         19  talk.

         20                 If you haven't already signed in,

         21  please sign in with the Sergeant-At-Arms.

         22                 Before we get started, this bill was

         23  sponsored by myself and Council Member Dear, along

         24  with Council Member Eisland.

         25                 Council Member Dear.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            5

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER DEAR: Thank you very

          3  much, Madam Chair, for holding this hearing. I know

          4  this is an issue that simultaneously came in through

          5  the office to ask for a sponsorship of some

          6  legislation of doing some form of licensing so we

          7  can have accountability to the clients and to the

          8  customers and the people who come into these travel

          9  agencies.

         10                 I didn't just do this out of pulling

         11  it out of a hat. I did this after many, many

         12  complaints and speaking to Channel 9, as well as

         13  other reports, and particular constituents of mine

         14  who came to me and said they are not even closing,

         15  these travel agencies, they are still in business,

         16  these travel agencies, and they were promised

         17  certain things, they paid and when they came back

         18  after the trip they didn't get what they paid for,

         19  and when you go to the travel agent, they didn't

         20  want to hear about it, and if you sue it costs money

         21  because it is above the small claims limit of

         22  $2,000, $3,000, and pay to go hire an attorney. So,

         23  I tried reaching travel agents and they just refused

         24  to deal with it, and then I spoke to the

         25  Commissioner of Consumer Affairs and he said there
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          2  is obviously a problem.

          3                 Now, let's make it clear, we know

          4  that, and you said in your opening statement, 99

          5  percent of the agents are legitimate agents working

          6  hard, and they are trying to service their

          7  customers. There are a few that are bad apples, and

          8  this will only help the good ones weed out the bad

          9  ones, and I think this route is obviously the route

         10  we should consider.

         11                 I know that the same phone calls, as

         12  soon as we announced it everybody got the same phone

         13  calls from travel agents who are all nervous about

         14  it, and I would hope that we could work together on

         15  this and continue to help better service the

         16  customer.

         17                 I also know that there is, all of

         18  these agents have to belong to professional

         19  associations in order for them to issue tickets and

         20  they are also being monitored there, as well as

         21  there is, obviously airlines are monitoring them as

         22  well. But this is probably more geared towards the

         23  charter groups, as well as the land packages that

         24  are sold with the airline tickets, and I think we

         25  should focus it on that. And at least if this
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          2  hearing will begin laying the ground work for

          3  improving services and working with the customers, I

          4  think that we will have a big win on that.

          5                 I also know that both California and

          6  Washington State do have laws like this, so I think

          7  it is something we can model after.

          8                 I am looking forward, and thank you

          9  very much to you and the staff, for moving forward

         10  on this issue. Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: I would also

         12  like to recognize Council Member Linares, who would

         13  like to make a few brief remarks.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: Thank you,

         15  Madam Chair.

         16                 I am not a standing member of the

         17  Committee but I really appreciate your opportunity,

         18  the opportunity to share brief remarks and just

         19  indicate that I, along with a number of other

         20  Council members, share concern over the intent of

         21  this piece of legislation and the broad brush with

         22  which after reading the legislation attempts to pull

         23  all of the travel agencies together, perhaps

         24  motivated by concerns over complaints that may have

         25  been given in particular cases where we may refer to
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          2  the bad apples that every type of industry may have,

          3  which we need to address, because we have to

          4  safeguard the interest of consumers, and I think it

          5  is in the interest of the industry to really make

          6  sure that consumers are well served, and that is the

          7  interest of this Council and this Committee I am

          8  sure. But having said that, I, as an immigrant, as

          9  someone that has worked in a travel agency, when I

         10  used to go to school, and I am divulging this now,

         11  but someone that works with families that come and

         12  settle and use the services of travel agencies, I

         13  have to say that the work that travel agencies

         14  provide, especially for immigrant families and

         15  immigrant communities is invaluable. It is not just

         16  selling a ticket, it is being a network to help

         17  families, transitions get access to information and

         18  also help them survive in the transition as they

         19  come and settled here.

         20                 In addition to that, I am aware that

         21  this is a very valuable industry for the economy of

         22  the City of New York, therefore every neighborhood

         23  where you find this type of industry. I just wanted

         24  to put that on the record. I am hopeful that through

         25  the chair and the members of the Committee any

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            9

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2  concern that exists that is legitimate should be

          3  addressed in the appropriate manner, but never at

          4  the expense of the invaluable service that I am

          5  aware, as most members of the City Council that I

          6  talk to are also aware of, that this industry is

          7  carrying out in the respected neighborhoods where

          8  they are established, and it is in their interest

          9  that consumers responded to and are well served,

         10  because this is the nature of the service that they

         11  provide.

         12                 So, I just wanted to put that on the

         13  record, and I hope that to the extent that we in the

         14  City Council Black and Hispanic Caucus can work

         15  closely with you, Madam Chair, the members of this

         16  Committee, the leadership of the City Council, to

         17  respond to any concern that may be connected to the

         18  industry. We stand ready to work and respond to

         19  those concerns but always understanding the

         20  invaluable work and service that the travel agency

         21  provides to our communities and to our New Yorkers.

         22                 Thank you, Madam Chair.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Thank you. I

         24  would also like to make a statement at this point. I

         25  think that we are all aware, and I can honestly say
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          2  that every one of us have used travel agents. In

          3  fact, I am going on vacation this summer and I just

          4  booked with a travel agent and I know that there are

          5  people in my community, one sitting in the audience,

          6  who is a fine travel agent, but when it comes to

          7  complaints that we receive from consumers, it is our

          8  responsibility to look into this matter and make

          9  sure that our consumers aren't being ripped off.

         10                 In my community we have a tremendous

         11  amount of Russian immigrants who, from time to time,

         12  have gone to purchase tickets and make plans for

         13  vacation through a travel agent and have been ripped

         14  off. One in particular, $3,000, lost their money and

         15  it took them a long time to save that money and what

         16  they were doing was going home and visiting some

         17  family.

         18                 So, I think it is our obligation as a

         19  Committee, when we receive complaints, for us to

         20  look into and see how we can rectify and not hurt

         21  the industry at all, but at the same time protect

         22  our consumers.

         23                 With that, I would like to start the

         24  movie.

         25                 (Following is transcribed from the
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          2  movie shown.)

          3                 MS. VISEBERG: She is not only a liar,

          4  she is a crook.

          5                 MODERATOR: Gidia Viseberg says she

          6  has been taken by more than $1,600. This woman

          7  claims she lost $2,000. This woman says she has been

          8  ripped off for $4,200, and they all have the

          9  receipts to show for it. They are Russian immigrants

         10  who live in Brooklyn's Brighton Beach near the

         11  landmarked elevated train. Now they say they have

         12  been railroaded by one of their own.

         13                 PARTICIPANT: (Unidentified Speaker) I

         14  have spoken to many people who say they have been

         15  saving pennies, literally pennies from their pension

         16  and their birthdays just so they could go back to

         17  Russia or wherever they came from and visit their

         18  husband's or wife's grave.

         19                 MODERATOR: They say they have been

         20  canned by Innis International Travel (phonetic).

         21  They are among dozens of people who recently paid

         22  cash to travel agent Innis Greenberg for airline

         23  tickets to Israel, Greece and the Czech Republic.

         24  They say they were told they could pick up their

         25  tickets on Monday, August 17th. When they showed up,
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          2  Innis was locked up, closed, without warning. Their

          3  vacation dreams and money of these hard-working

          4  customers went down the drain.

          5                 PARTICIPANT: I am very angry because

          6  she took my money, she spoiled my vacation. Instead

          7  of to go to Greece I take pills now, I almost had a

          8  heart attack. I didn't see my relatives for eight

          9  years and I want to go visit my daughter.

         10                 MODERATOR: Many of these people say

         11  they had no problem with Innis during the four years

         12  she has been here and they always paid in cash.

         13                 Why did you pay cash and not a credit

         14  card?

         15                 PARTICIPANT: Innis doesn't take any

         16  credit cards. She say if you give me cash, I give

         17  you the best price in town.

         18                 MODERATOR: One woman says she got

         19  suspicious when Innis kept stalling on her airline

         20  ticket, so before Innis disappeared, she demanded

         21  her $3,800 back. She says she got a check from Innis

         22  and it bounced.

         23                 When we visited the Ocean Parkway

         24  apartment where we were told Innis Greenberg lives,

         25  a man answered.
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          2                 Mr. Greenberg?

          3                 PARTICIPANT: No.

          4                 MODERATOR: Is Innis there?

          5                 PARTICIPANT: You have the wrong

          6  house.

          7                 MODERATOR: He said we had the wrong

          8  apartment.

          9                 New York City's Consumer Affairs

         10  Commissioner tells the I Team that his office has

         11  investigated the complaints against Innis

         12  International Travel Agency, and Jules Polonetsky

         13  says he is convinced that Innis did in fact steal

         14  people's money.

         15                 COMMISSIONER POLONETSKY: This travel

         16  agency was, instead of taking people for a trip, was

         17  taking people for a ride.

         18                 MODERATOR: The Consumer Affairs

         19  Commissioner says Innis committed criminal theft and

         20  he is giving the information to the Brooklyn

         21  District Attorney's Office. A DA spokesman told me

         22  the complaints are under investigation.

         23                 Commissioner Polonetsky says with

         24  travel agents not regulated, travel agent fraud is

         25  on the rise.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER POLONETSKY: If the price

          3  is too good to be true, it probably is too good to

          4  be true. And don't pay cash. Any travel agency that

          5  is reputable, that is selling thousands of dollars

          6  worth of tickets is going to be ready to take a

          7  credit card. You can protect yourself. You can

          8  cancel if they don't deliver.

          9                 MODERATOR: You should also confirm

         10  that your travel agent made your reservation by

         11  calling your airline.

         12                 Meanwhile, Queens Councilwoman Karen

         13  Koslowitz is drafting a bill that would regulate

         14  travel agencies, regulations that might have

         15  prevented the anguish in Brighton Beach.

         16                 PARTICIPANT: She, you know, did bad

         17  things to us, the immigrants from Russia. We are

         18  ashamed, we are just ashamed.

         19                 (End of video tape.)

         20                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Since the

         21  Commissioner of Consumer Affairs has not arrived

         22  yet, we will call on people who have signed up. I

         23  would like to start with Jack Tillem and Joan Duran.

         24                 MR. TILLEM: Good afternoon. Thank

         25  you, Madame Chair, and members of the Council. I am
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          2  Jack Tillem and I am the President of the New York

          3  City Chapter of the American Society of Travel

          4  Agents. I am here to speak in opposition to this

          5  bill to register travel agents. Our chapter

          6  represents over 1,500 travel agent professionals in

          7  New York City, and I want to tell you that travel

          8  agents in New York City are already struggling with

          9  reduced airline commissions, higher rents, expensive

         10  technology, and all of those things are making our

         11  attempt to earn a living more difficult each and

         12  every day. Adding an additional expense for

         13  registration and bonds could very well be the last

         14  straw to break the camel's back.

         15                 It is going to have the effect of

         16  driving most of our small businesses out of the

         17  City. They will seek spaces in Bergen County,

         18  Hudson, Westchester and Nassau, and they will find

         19  empty stores in Florham Park and in places like

         20  Fairview, New Jersey.

         21                 The results, more vacant stores and

         22  more blight in the neighborhood.

         23                 It is not the local travel agents who

         24  need regulation, Madam Chair. They are all

         25  neighborhood and community fixtures dependent on
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          2  goodwill generated by being honest and reliable with

          3  their customers. Look to the Internet, the mail

          4  orders, TV scams for the place that are ripping off

          5  the traveling public. Places that your law will not

          6  touch. This bill is truly a solution looking for a

          7  non-existent problem.

          8                 No other City we know of in the

          9  entire United States has such a law or is

         10  contemplating passing it. The situation in

         11  California and I believe in one other state is such

         12  that the legislation is not working, the scam

         13  operators are proliferating and it hasn't helped.

         14                 Why is New York City once again

         15  turning against small business people who serve

         16  their neighbors and communities and pay taxes?

         17                 Chances are if this bill passes a few

         18  more of us will go under. I want to ask you, am I

         19  really off base in thinking it is always the little

         20  guys the City is going after - the van operator, the

         21  taxi driver, the hot dog vendor and now the local

         22  travel agencies.

         23                 We already have sufficient laws and

         24  regulations in the City to curve and curtail seedy

         25  business practices to protect the consumer. Think
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          2  about it. The City ombudsman, I believe that is the

          3  public advocate, the Department of Consumer Affairs,

          4  small claims court, State Attorney General Consumer

          5  Bureau, the Better Business Bureau, consumer

          6  mediation tribunal. Why add more bureaucracy picking

          7  on travel agents, small entrepreneurs, the last

          8  vestiges of a diminishing breed in New York City.

          9                 It may not seem like much, but the

         10  cost of the bond proposed in this bill will be a few

         11  hundred dollars at the very minimum. Now, add the

         12  additional expense of the accountant who has to

         13  prepare the papers necessary to obtain the coverage.

         14  Tack on the registration fee, we are talking about

         15  an additional expense of $1,000 to $2,000 at the

         16  very least. These are people who are not only

         17  contributing taxes and services but they live in the

         18  City and they are involved in community

         19  organizations. And as it happens, most of them are

         20  not youngsters. If you look at the demographics of

         21  the travel agent in New York City, these are people

         22  in their 50s, 60s, and even 70s, and what is going

         23  to happen? You are going to drive them out of New

         24  York City so they retire in Ft. Lauderdale and North

         25  Carolina.
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          2                 Now, that is a very real possibility

          3  because we have already been rendered a critical, if

          4  not mortal blow in recent years by the airlines

          5  reducing our commissions to what you would have to

          6  call a subsistence level. At one time let me share

          7  with you we made ten percent on a ticket. Let's use

          8  $3,000 tickets, we made $300. Now the commission is

          9  capped at $50. On top of that, you have the direct

         10  writers, the 800s, the Internet, not to mention the

         11  airlines frequent flyer programs and price line

         12  auctions, all of which are contributing mightily to

         13  a reduction of our bottom line.

         14                 We are still holding on in New York

         15  City but the numbers are diminishing.

         16                 A few years ago our chapter numbered

         17  approximately $1,900. We are down some 20 percent to

         18  $1,500.

         19                 What this bill will do is contribute

         20  to the demise of the local travel agent. Now, I want

         21  to ask you people, who are really the ones who take

         22  care of our city, must every neighborhood business

         23  go under because there is one or two charlatans and

         24  crooks out there? Is that what the millennium means?

         25  I ask the members of the City Council to contemplate
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          2  virtually all of the stationery stores are gone

          3  replaced by Staples and Home Depot. The local

          4  pharmacy is history, you go to a CVS or to a

          5  Rite-Aid. Does anybody remember the local hardware

          6  store? Good-bye, you go to Home Depot.

          7                 Now, I don't expect to go back to the

          8  halcyon days where we did business with neighbors,

          9  shopkeepers before Wall-Mart and the Price Club era,

         10  and I have nothing against large franchises, but

         11  still, is it really necessary to contribute to this

         12  trend by closing local travel agencies, a result

         13  certain to be facilitated by this bill?

         14                 What is the point? I can understand

         15  if you go after the Internet scams, the

         16  fly-by-nights, the operators who prey on

         17  unsuspecting consumers with phony ads in newspapers

         18  for cheap tickets, but they are not going to be

         19  touched one wit by this bill.

         20                 I couldn't help but notice that in

         21  the past few years New York City is eliminating the

         22  commuter tax. I believe the New York State

         23  Legislature passed such a bill.

         24                 Think about it. A commuter comes into

         25  the City from Scarsdale, let's say he or she makes
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          2  $125,000 a year, that is a nice tidy income. The tax

          3  would have cost him $500 or $600, that is $10 or $12

          4  a week, for using everything the City provides and

          5  giving him a place to make a living. If he calls

          6  9-1-1 or feels secure because there is a cop on the

          7  street, or he simply wants to sit on a park bench.

          8  It is a free-bee for him now, it won't cost him

          9  nothing. I don't understand it. But, okay, if the

         10  local travel agent who almost 100 percent lives and

         11  works in this City, pays an income tax ten times

         12  higher than the old commuter tax, and now with this

         13  bill will pay an even higher tax, you may call it a

         14  registration fee and a bond, but it is no different

         15  than paying a tax, it all comes out of his income.

         16                 The Council is concerned about the

         17  immigrant population. There will always be crooks

         18  taking advantage of those who lack education and are

         19  new to our shores. But that is not the local travel

         20  agent. If immigrants are easy picking for travel

         21  scams, it is not from the neighborhood travel agent

         22  stores or local office who depends on the goodwill

         23  and repeat business of their customers.

         24                 With all due respect, in closing I

         25  submit to you that you are aiming your guns at the
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          2  wrong target.

          3                 It is not the travel agent, the

          4  legitimate business person sitting in his or her

          5  office on Tremont Avenue in the Bronx, or Hylan

          6  Boulevard on Staten Island, or Roosevelt Avenue in

          7  Queens or Lenox Avenue in Manhattan or Uttica Avenue

          8  in Brooklyn that needs to be policed. Please don't

          9  add this burden, an unnecessary one, to our already

         10  strapped and struggling businesses.

         11                 Thank you so much. Please reject the

         12  bill.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: I would like

         14  to say two comments. At the beginning of your

         15  statement when you said investigating the food

         16  vendors and the vans and other such things, I can

         17  tell you that we did food vendors in this Committee,

         18  we dealt with the food vendors, and what was

         19  portrayed through the newspapers wasn't exactly what

         20  was going on, it was protecting the consumer, and it

         21  was protecting actually the food vendor themselves,

         22  and that was the goal of this Committee, to protect

         23  the little person and get rid of the big guy who was

         24  harming these little guys. So, that was the object

         25  of this hearing.
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          2                 When you say neighborhoods, we just

          3  watched a film and that was in a particular

          4  neighborhood. That was their neighborhood travel

          5  agent. In my neighborhood on 63rd Drive, it happened

          6  to someone who went to a neighborhood travel agent

          7  and lost all of their money. So, these are

          8  neighborhood travel agents that are there.

          9                 How do you suggest we take care of

         10  the bad travel agencies separate from taking in

         11  overall all of the travel agencies?

         12                 MR. TILLEM: I appreciate your asking

         13  me that question. First of all, of course you are

         14  never going to cure the problem completely and I

         15  understand the Committee's concerns. You are talking

         16  about one particular instance of a travel agency

         17  that, first of all, they said they don't take credit

         18  cards, and people are giving them cash. Rather

         19  naive.

         20                 What this bill essentially does is

         21  place on the back of the local neighborhood travel

         22  agent, that you want to keep in the City, the

         23  burden, the responsibility, another yoke, to

         24  contribute a fund to pay for that travel agent. And

         25  I say to you, that it is an unfair burden. We can't
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          2  afford it.

          3                 The net affect, the

          4  counter-productive result of this bill will be that

          5  travel agents will go out, the legitimate ones will

          6  end up going out of business and you will open up a

          7  vacuum where the crooks will come in.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Where do we

          9  get this fund from? Who gives us this fund?

         10                 MR. TILLEM: By the way, this fund now

         11  is the theory in California, from what I understand

         12  the crooks are still operating and the little travel

         13  agents now are paying these higher and higher fees

         14  to subsidize this operation.

         15                 If you want to go after somebody to

         16  pay this, I think it is the airlines, they have made

         17  billions of dollars in profits in the last two,

         18  three years. It may be a problem this Council can't

         19  address by its jurisdiction, but it certainly would

         20  be the airline, the large operators, the ones who

         21  are furnishing the tickets and the tours that these

         22  people are extensively using. Not the little travel

         23  agent on Queens Boulevard who already is struggling

         24  and making at most a $50 amount on the ticket.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: I understand
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          2  that, but there are many airlines who have gone out

          3  of business in the last few years --

          4                 MR. TILLEM: You will have no fear

          5  that American Airlines, Delta, United, US Air are

          6  going under. They can well afford this throughout

          7  the entire country.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: How do we pick

          9  these airlines? How do we pick these airlines? Do

         10  you just take the big ones?

         11                 MR. TILLEM: No, no. You can pick them

         12  all.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: If you have

         14  been in business for 25 years you have to pay and if

         15  you are in business only for a year you don't have

         16  to pay? There is no such law and that is

         17  discrimination.

         18                 MR. TILLEM: They have taxes at

         19  airports. If you added 25 cents to every airline

         20  ticket, instead of just using the money to build

         21  bigger and better terminals and subsidize the

         22  airlines, I could venture to say if you added five

         23  cents or even a penny to every airline ticket sold

         24  in this country as a tax, you would solve the

         25  problem immediately.
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          2                 Doesn't it seem unfair to you to

          3  place this burden on legitimate small people? That

          4  is all you are going to affect.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Yes, also I am

          6  open to discuss this, but at the same time, by

          7  placing it on big business such as the airlines, we

          8  know where that money and that price is going to

          9  come back to, and that is the consumer.

         10                 So, we don't want to zap the consumer

         11  again.

         12                 MR. TILLEM: I am going to pass, Madam

         13  Chair, to Joan Duran. I understand the concerns you

         14  have and I would like to have you hear her speak.

         15  Thank you.

         16                 MS. DURAN: Hello. My name is Joan

         17  Duran, past president of the New York City Chapter

         18  of the American Society of Travel Agents. I have

         19  been an agency owner for the past 22 years. The

         20  American Society of Travel Agents, ASTA, is one of

         21  the world's largest trade associations of

         22  professional travel agents. It has 13,000 travel

         23  agent members, worldwide. Total membership of over

         24  25,000 members.

         25                 ASTA's purpose is the promotion and
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          2  advancement of the interest of the travel industry

          3  in safeguarding the traveling public against fraud,

          4  misrepresentation and other unethical practices.

          5                 ASTA's New York City Chapter

          6  represents over 1,500 travel professionals across

          7  the five boroughs. ASTA and the agency community

          8  opposes Int. 529.

          9                 Int. 529 says that it regulates

         10  travel agencies, yet consumer complaints about

         11  travel sellers are not about travel agencies. The

         12  complaints are about sellers of tickets for

         13  expensive overseas travel, quoted and described in

         14  legislative bindings and intent, Section 20-759. The

         15  tickets referred to are presumably airline tickets

         16  and thus the bad guys are a new type of travel

         17  seller called "consolidators".

         18                 Consolidators did not exist prior to

         19  airline deregulation back in the late 1970s.

         20  Consolidators often will not be able to confirm a

         21  flight reservation until long after a consumer has

         22  paid for the ticket, which is the case in your

         23  video.

         24                 Tickets from consolidators are

         25  different from airline tickets that a travel agent
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          2  can confirm and also deliver immediately upon

          3  payment. It is not the local travel agent that needs

          4  regulation. A consumer who wants to obtain a

          5  low-cost consolidated ticket has to pay in full for

          6  the ticket far in advance. A consumer may not know

          7  the details until days before the flight whether the

          8  consolidator will be able to provide a ticket, and

          9  if so, which airline, which airport and even the

         10  exact date of travel. By the time the consumer knows

         11  all of these variables, he may not want what the

         12  consolidator has reserved and is unable at that

         13  point to obtain a refund. The consumer at that point

         14  may have to pay much more for a last minute ticket

         15  than if he or she had originally bought a normally

         16  discounted ticket from the travel agent.

         17                 Int. 529 says it regulates the travel

         18  agencies, but the definition of the regulated entity

         19  talks about sellers, whether principal or agent, and

         20  sellers who go out of business without providing

         21  travel arrangements.

         22                 Travel agencies do not provide,

         23  travel agencies sell. Travel agencies are not

         24  principals. Travel agencies are agents. The term

         25  travel agent is a term of art in the travel selling
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          2  industry, more significantly the term travel agent

          3  indicates a specific legal relationship between the

          4  principal who is the supplier or provider of travel

          5  services.

          6                 The agent who sells the principal's

          7  services and the third-party traveler or purchaser

          8  of the principal's service. The only thing a travel

          9  agency really does is sell travel, although

         10   "arrange" could be constructed to mean the same

         11  thing. Travel cannot be arranged in any meaningful

         12  sense without a booking.

         13                 Int. 529 is not consumer protection

         14  legislation, because it doesn't give consumers any

         15  more rights or any more recourse than they currently

         16  have. It is overly trusting to think that a business

         17  that intentionally goes out of business after

         18  accepting consumers' money is going to comply with a

         19  registration and bonding requirement or that

         20  registration will make the principals of these

         21  businesses any easier to locate after they have

         22  fleeced unsuspected consumers.

         23                 New York's Truth In Travel Act,

         24  currently requires certain travel sellers, and

         25  especially the type of seller contemplated by the
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          2  proposed ordinance to make certain disclosures in a

          3  written agreement and give the consumer a three-day

          4  right of rescission.

          5                 Int. 529 is trying to look for

          6  solutions by regulating travel agencies when the

          7  problem is not travel agents. Consolidators, mail

          8  orders, telephone, TV scams are the bad guys who are

          9  deceiving the consumer. This bill will hurt the

         10  innocent and will not protect the consumer.

         11                 New York City asks or urges the

         12  Council to vote against Int. 529 and ASTA's 1,500

         13  travel professionals in our five boroughs urge the

         14  Council to reject this bill.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Who regulates

         16  consolidators?

         17                 MS. DURAN: Consolidators are not

         18  licensed by the airlines, they are not licensed by

         19  ASTA, they don't have any bonds, any guidelines,

         20  they are fly-by-night shops that open up. They buy

         21  quantity and they give the consumer at the last

         22  minute whatever they can grab. There are no bonding

         23  requirements. The airlines do not furnish them with

         24  airline tickets in many cases.

         25                 The example that you had on the
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          2  video, quite frankly, I think the consumer has to be

          3  aware of a lot of factors also. Would you go into a

          4  travel agency and want to pay by credit card and

          5  they don't accept it, they only want cash?

          6                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: You know, we

          7  live in, and I just want to say, when you say it is

          8  not travel agents I have to disagree, because it is

          9  travel agencies that we do get the complaints on.

         10  So, you know, this bill would absolutely take care

         11  of the consolidators. The consolidators are in this

         12  bill, so we would be regulating them to be more

         13  responsible. But in this City there are many people

         14  that, and especially the immigrant population that

         15  can't get credit cards, because there are limits on

         16  how you can get a credit card. So, they have no

         17  other alternative but to pay cash for a ticket, and

         18  we have to be responsible to this population because

         19  of a large population in our City, and that is our

         20  responsibility. They don't have credit cards, and

         21  there are lots of people that don't have credit

         22  cards, don't want credit cards, and we have to be

         23  responsible to those people too.

         24                 MR. TILLEM: Madam Chair, I am going

         25  to defer and I am going to ask Joan here to defer
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          2  here to the president and representatives of various

          3  travel agency organizations that work and support

          4  those communities who are waiting here to speak, so

          5  perhaps you question can be addressed to them.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Yes. Before we

          7  do that, I see that the Commissioner has arrived and

          8  I would like to call Commissioner Polonetsky.

          9                 COMMISSIONER POLONETSKY: Thank you.

         10  Good afternoon. I apologize for being a little late

         11  today. We had a recent announcement that ran a

         12  little bit late, letting people know about what is

         13  going on with pre-Memorial Day gasoline prices, and

         14  the bad news, unfortunately, for consumers is that

         15  gasoline prices are now up 18 percent since

         16  February. It is a real big chunk. Unfortunately the

         17  weather has gotten warmer and as daylight has become

         18  longer, we have seen a good number of the gas

         19  stations around this City are following with higher

         20  prices.

         21                 Thank you for the chance to be with

         22  you here today. I will start out with an update, I

         23  understand that you showed a bit of the coverage of

         24  the Innis Travel Agency situation, in my old home

         25  assembly district of Brighton Beach, Councilman
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          2  Lasher's home district of course as well.

          3                 We received a number of complaints

          4  forwarded both by elected officials and a good

          5  number of people in the Russian immigrant community

          6  who were by and large the prime victims of this

          7  agency, over 100 by several weeks ago.

          8                 To give you an update of where things

          9  stood, as you know, in addition to taking whatever

         10  enforcement action we could, since this place was

         11  already closed down, we referred to the Brooklyn

         12  DA's Office the evidence that we had put together.

         13  On January 28th, the owner/operator of the travel

         14  agency was arrested. Her trial starts on June the

         15  24th. That will be the first court date. And she has

         16  been charged with grand larceny, and with scheming

         17  to defraud, and so we are hoping that the

         18  prosecution of this case, as a result of the

         19  complaints and the people who came forward and our

         20  laying it out for the DA will send a message to some

         21  of the agencies that think that it is acceptable to

         22  do business in this way.

         23                 I thank you for the chance to testify

         24  about Intro. 529 of the bill that would require

         25  travel agencies to register with our Department, as
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          2  well as to post a bond with the agency. We

          3  appreciate and applaud the motivation for the bill

          4  and we agree that steps should be taken to increase

          5  the level of protection for consumers who use travel

          6  agencies.

          7                 Travel agency complaints are

          8  regularly one of the Department of Consumer Affairs

          9  top ten complaint categories, and in the current

         10  fiscal year they are the ninth highest category with

         11  a number of 330 complaints on file now. I will tell

         12  you that that is a significant increase, as well, so

         13  I think that your initiative is important in terms

         14  of its timing. We saw 236 complaints in '98, 196 in

         15  '97, 179 in '96, 178 in '95. So that is an 86

         16  percent increase since 1995, and that is obviously

         17  overwhelmingly significant, so there is clearly a

         18  very broad problem out there and we welcome the

         19  opportunity that the Committee is taking and the

         20  Chair is taking to address this.

         21                 We do believe that 529 is a good

         22  starting point for a discussion on how to protect

         23  travelers, but we think that the consumer protection

         24  issues involved in this industry require perhaps a

         25  more comprehensive approach, building on some of the
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          2  ideas that have been raised here today.

          3                 First of all, under Intro. 529, the

          4  Department would only have the power to take action

          5  against companies that collect money from consumers

          6  and then go out of business without providing the

          7  promised services. That is certainly a significant

          8  portion of the complaints we receive, but the vast

          9  majority of the complaints that we receive are filed

         10  against travel agencies that haven't gone out of

         11  business at the time that we begin hearing about the

         12  problem.

         13                 Some of them do end up at some point

         14  going out of business, a good chunk of the

         15  complaints are about agencies that continue to

         16  operate improperly or that are beginning to go down

         17  the path, whether they are run by somebody who

         18  actually intends to defraud people and slowly starts

         19  stopping to provide service in return for his

         20  compensation, or a travel agent, frankly, that is

         21  having other economic problems, but yet continues to

         22  accept money even though they are not actually

         23  ticketing. We often start hearing from people as

         24  those agencies are still in business.

         25                 Over the last few years about ten to
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          2  15 percent of the complaints that we receive

          3  involved companies that had recently gone out of

          4  business. That certainly protects the issues raised

          5  by 529, certainly I think begin to address that

          6  portion of the audience, but I think leave the

          7  majority of the consumers who complain to us with

          8  travel issues without a substantially additional

          9  level of protection.

         10                 We would suggest at the Department a

         11  more comprehensive approach that would attempt to

         12  protect the broader majority of consumers affected

         13  when things go wrong with the travel agent.

         14                 I think that such a system needs to

         15  be comprehensive on a state or federal level or in a

         16  much broader level and let me explain some of the

         17  reasons.

         18                 The travel industry has indeed

         19  changed and from a time when the vast majority of

         20  people indeed did business with a travel agent

         21  working out of a specific retail location on the

         22  corner, we today see a much broader variety of ways

         23  that people make their travel plans. Occasionally, a

         24  substantial number of cases, the complaint is not,

         25  although the complaint is against the travel agency,
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          2  the complaint is about the hotel that the person

          3  ended up being booked at, what happened with the

          4  airline, what happened with the tour.

          5                 One recent complaint to the

          6  Department about a travel agency was about when he

          7  arrived he discovered that his hotel room was being

          8  renovated. The hotel moved him to another room,

          9  which was also under construction and the individual

         10  now wants a refund. He purchased this through his

         11  travel agent. In fact, the travel agent had the best

         12  of intentions, and the structure we are setting up

         13  here wouldn't leave us with a way that we actually

         14  could address the people who were directly

         15  responsible for the problem.

         16                 The travel agency which had dealt

         17  with this hotel before had no way of knowing about

         18  this construction. If we were going to mediate this

         19  complaint, which we currently would be doing, the

         20  Department would now have to try to deal with a

         21  business in another city over which we would have

         22  limited ability to reach a resolution.

         23                 Another scenario, a travel agent in

         24  the City might book a trip for a consumer to

         25  California. Rather than dealing with a hotel in
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          2  California, a travel agency might often be dealing

          3  with another agency in California who actually books

          4  the rooms. Again, if there is a problem, the

          5  Department is dealing with an agency over which it

          6  has no control or no effective way to enforce.

          7  Holding the New York City-based business responsible

          8  would raise questions of whether we were actually

          9  pinning the blame on the person who is responsible

         10  for the problem.

         11                 Technology of course has also changed

         12  the travel business, although New Yorkers still do

         13  use their neighborhood travel agent, many more today

         14  are making travel arrangements through 800 numbers,

         15  through Internet services, all of whom are not based

         16  in the City or would not be subject to these

         17  registrational requirements.

         18                 Although a comprehensive or a federal

         19  system to handle these problems is a significant

         20  task, we think that it is the direction that should

         21  be considered. A model certainly already exists when

         22  we look at the work done by the American Society of

         23  Travel Agents, the organization which includes

         24  travel agencies, airlines, cruise ships and hotels

         25  with more than 15,000 members and more than 100
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          2  countries, including several hundred just in New

          3  York. Although, of course, ASTA does not license, it

          4  does mediate complaints against its members and can

          5  award consumer restitution for members that violate

          6  its codes of conduct.

          7                 Since ASTA is a voluntary membership

          8  organization, I think we should take a look at some

          9  of the lessons from that experience and see whether

         10  we can use them as a framework for creating a

         11  consumer protection system on a national level. I am

         12  confident that if we work with ASTA, as well as with

         13  the Federal Trade Commission, the airlines, the

         14  hotels, the cruise ship companies and of course you,

         15  to see if we can develop a system that will protect

         16  the broadest number of consumers from those who do

         17  practice in an unscrupulous manner in this area.

         18                 I point of course to the fact that

         19  there are other efforts that go on and are going on

         20  as we discuss this, there are travel agency

         21  registration bills that have been introduced in the

         22  State Legislature, both in the Assembly and the

         23  State Senate, and I certainly suggest that we invite

         24  the sponsor of those bills to join us as we take a

         25  look at this problem.
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          2                 Let me reiterate that the Department

          3  of Consumer Affairs whole-heartedly supports the

          4  Chairwoman's efforts to respond to this growing

          5  number of complaints that the Department and that

          6  you and your colleagues are receiving about travel

          7  agencies. We think that 529 might set up an

          8  expensive system that would leave the vast majority

          9  of consumers who complain without a level of

         10  additional protection. We think that to effectively

         11  respond to consumers who travel, we need to set up

         12  and take a look at this industry in a broader and

         13  maybe more comprehensive basis and we welcome the

         14  opportunity, and I think it is a particularly timely

         15  opportunity to do so.

         16                 I will tell you, one of the other

         17  things as an aside that we are seeing as well, and

         18  this by no means represents the vast majority of

         19  travel agents, of course the vast majority of travel

         20  agents are committed to doing well by providing

         21  service for customers who then will refer others or

         22  who will be repeat users. But there has been a

         23  recent, I don't know if this is brand new, it is

         24  probably something that has gone one, but we are

         25  seeing I think a bit of an uptick in some of what
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          2  truly is criminal activity and we are looking,

          3  together with some federal law enforcement agencies

          4  at whether there is an organized effort by a number

          5  of operators who set up shop, open up, initially do

          6  issue some tickets and then very intentionally begin

          7  to operate by collecting money without issuing and

          8  then quickly closing their doors and moving on to

          9  another location, and there is some evidence that

         10  there is some activity, clearly that is not at all

         11  reflective of I think the situation we are talking

         12  about. I think what we are talking about here are

         13  two examples:

         14                 One, people who are in the business

         15  of being travel agents and who are not scrupulous,

         16  and of course in every industry there are some, and

         17  then people whose businesses are failing, such as we

         18  often see with catering halls, but yet to continue

         19  to accept the deposits knowing that they are not

         20  going to be able to provide the service, or in this

         21  case actually issue and cancel on the ticket. So we

         22  look forward to working with you because it is a

         23  particularly important time, the 86 percent increase

         24  shows that there is a real problem here and the

         25  Council is certainly doing the right thing by
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          2  reacting to this problem.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: I have a few

          4  questions I would like to ask you.

          5                 How many complaints last year

          6  involved people paying for travel arrangements that

          7  were made by an agency?

          8                 COMMISSIONER POLONETSKY: I don't have

          9  a breakdown of the character of the different

         10  complaints. There are to date 330, but since we are

         11  not at the end of our fiscal year, the increase is

         12  going to be more than an 86 percent increase, by the

         13  time '99 fiscal year wraps up.

         14                 The rough breakdown that I do have is

         15  that about 75 to 80 percent are against travel

         16  agencies that are currently in business when we get

         17  the complaint where we reach out and sometimes

         18  successfully mediate, sometimes unsuccessfully

         19  mediate and then have to take legal action as we do

         20  a number of times a year against the travel agent to

         21  try to issue fines and try to force restitution, if

         22  they are improper practices going on.

         23                 In about 15 percent of the time, by

         24  the time we get the complaints, the agent has

         25  actually shut down and the complaints now start
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          2  pouring in --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Fifteen?

          4                 COMMISSIONER POLONETSKY: Roughly ten

          5  to 15 percent. We can take a hard look as we go

          6  forward at the entire audience of complaints and see

          7  if we can segregate them and learn something from

          8  the broad history, we probably should request the

          9  same kind of information from the BBB and the

         10  Attorney General's Office, since they also are

         11  likely to receive a number of complaints, an then we

         12  might want to do a good analysis and really

         13  understand a little bit more of what exactly, are

         14  there certain kinds of operators, are there hotels

         15  involved more often than not so we can have a little

         16  bit better of an idea. I think that would be a

         17  useful thing to do.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: If we can take

         19  a look at that breakdown, I would appreciate it.

         20                 COMMISSIONER POLONETSKY: We can

         21  easily pull ours. We will subpoena, and the BBB

         22  cooperates but they usually require subpoenas if

         23  they are not properly giving out information. But

         24  they routinely give us that, and we will ask the

         25  Attorney General's Office if we can have a broad
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          2  audience.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Out of these

          4  people, how many of the people receive their money

          5  back?

          6                 COMMISSIONER POLONETSKY: I would say

          7  that in the case where the travel agency is doing

          8  business we have a very good record at requiring

          9  restitution. If the travel agent is out of business

         10  we have a real serious problem.

         11                 In some occasions we have been able

         12  to track down the individuals elsewhere. In a recent

         13  case, Travel by Monique, the operator also headed an

         14  art gallery, of all businesses, nearby and her

         15  husband was running it or she was running it, and so

         16  we were able to find some common ownership and we

         17  were able to locate assets.

         18                 In a typical case like Innis, by the

         19  time there is an opportunity to bring legal action,

         20  either the money is gone or we are in the position

         21  of trying to find, you know, cash in somebody's

         22  accounts, and it can be very difficult to locate any

         23  assets.

         24                 So, if the business is actually still

         25  operating, the odds are we are going to get the
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          2  money back because the business is going to be sued,

          3  and I when I announce the suit, you know, we can get

          4  a court order, there is an opportunity to get

          5  redress. So, in about 80 percent of those cases

          6  somebody will get at least some resolution.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: I understand

          8  that California and Oregon have recently taken

          9  different approaches to the posting of security by

         10  travel agencies. California requires everyone to

         11  contribute to a fund while Oregon exempts those who

         12  post bonds with industry associations to protect

         13  consumers.

         14                 Do you have an opinion on which

         15  approach is better?

         16                 COMMISSIONER POLONETSKY: We started

         17  to take a look at California's. I haven't yet looked

         18  at Oregon's but I think those are the kinds of

         19  things we ought to be taking a look at to see what

         20  works best in New York.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Thank you.

         22                 The proposal before us allows us to

         23  go with the funds, instead of requiring each travel

         24  agency to post a bond. How much do you think would

         25  be a reasonable amount to ask travel agencies to
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          2  contribute to a fund to protect consumers?

          3                 COMMISSIONER POLONETSKY: It is an

          4  important question because, as you know, we maintain

          5  a number of other trust funds, including the HIC

          6  trust funds, and one of the things that we are

          7  struggling with right now is the fact that the

          8  amount that one required to contribute to the HIC

          9  trust fund wasn't calculated based on any

         10  anticipated pay-out from that trust fund, and so we

         11  are continually, for instance, in deficit in that

         12  trust fund because the number of home improvement

         13  contractor complaints has continued to grow, the

         14  contribution to the trust fund is roughly the same.

         15  But in addition, when the amount was calculated, as

         16  you know it is $200, it wasn't done with any

         17  actuarial sense of what kind of loss is there, or

         18  since this is before my day there was a calculation

         19  done, it didn't accurately reflect because for years

         20  the number of consumers who are awarded restitution

         21  has exceeded the dollar amount paid into the fund by

         22  contractors, so we are always playing catch-up so

         23  that people end up having to wait a period of time,

         24  sometimes a long period of time before they can

         25  receive restitution because we have got to wait for
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          2  more contractors to pay in or renewal period when

          3  all of the contractors pay in.

          4                 So, any kind of trust fund model I

          5  think would require a good analysis of the

          6  complaints that are out there, the number of

          7  complaints and what are the dollar amounts that

          8  people have been defrauded.

          9                 In addition, one would need a survey

         10  and get a sense of how much would this bond cost. If

         11  there is going to be an alternative, the common

         12  sense business practice is going to be to choose the

         13  cheaper alternative. For years the trust fund has

         14  been cheaper than one could attain out in the

         15  bonding area, and so the vast majority of people

         16  bond.

         17                 One of the other problems with a bond

         18  of course is, a bond is first come first served, and

         19  then when the money is gone the money is gone. And

         20  so let's assume there was a $20,000 bond, and 100

         21  consumers were hurt to the tune of $100,000, you

         22  know, either the first on line, you wouldn't see

         23  more than the bond worth of compensation. The trust

         24  fund, of course, pays without regard to your

         25  contribution, and so your trust fund would
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          2  compensate every single consumer so you would help

          3  the vast majority of consumers, on the other hand it

          4  ends up being tricky and turns out, because it also

          5  makes it less of a good economic balance.

          6                 The trust fund, the HIC trust fund as

          7  a model has been very good for consumers, but

          8  unfortunately the trust fund is always nearly empty

          9  because a contractor who causes a great deal of harm

         10  might only pay out on a $10,000 bond but the trust

         11  fund will end up paying out $100,000 or $150,000.

         12  We have tried to address it, of course, by being a

         13  bit more aggressive in our enforcement, hopefully we

         14  will soon be able to update you about the new HIC

         15  squad that we talked about, but we have been seizing

         16  a substantial number of vehicles and instead of the

         17  trust fund paying out, forcing the contractors to do

         18  good.

         19                 So, these are the things that I think

         20  we need to work through with you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Thank you very

         22  much.

         23                 Before we continue, I want to

         24  acknowledge Council Member Howard Lasher, and

         25  Council Member Sabini. The Council Members will be

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            48

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2  in and out today because while we are doing this we

          3  are also doing budget negotiations that are going on

          4  downstairs and Council Member Spigner, who was with

          5  us before, is there. So, Council Members will be

          6  coming in and out.

          7                 Thank you very much, Commissioner.

          8                 COMMISSIONER POLONETSKY: Thank you

          9  very much for the chance to testify.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: I look forward

         11  to working with you.

         12                 I would like to call on Shirley

         13  Jenkins and Muriel Segal.

         14                 MS. JENKINS: Good afternoon, members

         15  of the Council, and other Council members present.

         16  My name is Shirley Jenkins, and I am the President

         17  of Solid Gold Travel in Bayside, New York. I have

         18  been in business for 17 years and I have been in the

         19  industry for over 35 years. I was formerly a New

         20  York City employee.

         21                 I respectfully request that Intro.

         22  No. 529, a bill to register travel agents in New

         23  York City, be rejected.

         24                 It is my understanding that this bill

         25  would require every travel consultant agency and
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          2  seller of travel to register and pay a registration

          3  fee of approximately $200, plus a security bond on

          4  top of the one that we are required to have. This is

          5  unfair and it is wrong.

          6                 Most agencies are small, medium-sized

          7  businesses trying to remain desperately to stay on

          8  the New York City tax rolls. The majority of us are

          9  honest, hard-working and caring, giving the best

         10  service to our clients. We treat our clients like we

         11  treat our families. When they go away, they come

         12  back, they bring pictures, they take time, they

         13  share coffee and tea with us, and we talk about

         14  their experiences and plan their next experience.

         15  Travel for them is a real intimate experience and

         16  those of us who have been in the business for a long

         17  time, we are intimately involved with those

         18  experiences for our clients.

         19                 Now, the airlines have cut our

         20  commissions and you have heard all of that before so

         21  I won't go into that again. But to ask us to pay out

         22  more money would be detrimental to the small

         23  business community.

         24                 Maybe something does need to be done

         25  about unscrupulous agents in immigrant areas. I
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          2  don't deny this, because they cast a dark cloud or

          3  spell over all of us.

          4                 Travel agencies must be certified by

          5  number of accreditation agencies before they can

          6  serve the public.

          7                 ARC, which is the Airline Reporting

          8  Corps, IATN, which is the International Airline

          9  Travel Network, CLIA, which is the Cruise Line

         10  International Association, along with accreditation

         11  comes bonding, face-to-face in-office interviews,

         12  background checks, all of that before we can serve

         13  the public.

         14                 New York City already requires

         15  businesses doing business in New York to register

         16  with the Department of Consumer Affairs.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: No.

         18                 MS. JENKINS:  No longer? When I

         19  worked for the City, I guess it was 30 years ago,

         20  they were required to register with the Department

         21  of Consumer Affairs. No more. Oh boy, I just learned

         22  something.

         23                 But a crook is a crook is a crook, so

         24  no matter what you do that crook is going to find a

         25  way in which to override whatever you do.
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          2                 You take the crook who designed the

          3  club. It was a crook who designed it. An honest

          4  person wouldn't have thought about that because an

          5  honest person wasn't crooked. When a client comes

          6  into a legitimate travel agency, they can use cash,

          7  check, or credit card and they are given a proper

          8  receipt and their tickets right then and there,

          9  their airline tickets.

         10                 The kind of receipt that I saw on the

         11  Channel 9 piece was not a proper receipt that a

         12  regular travel agency would give to a client. We

         13  give itineraries along with the documents, and if

         14  you bring in cash, you have your ticket right then

         15  and there.

         16                 If it is a tour or a cruise, we wait

         17  for the tour or the cruise company to send the

         18  documents back to us. We sit down with that client,

         19  we explain to them every item that they have

         20  purchased. We show them which document to use when

         21  and where. And then we give them a little gift to

         22  speed them on their way and wish them ado and a safe

         23  trip.

         24                 It is always easy to criticize

         25  something, but it is not always easy to find a
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          2  solution. But I do offer a suggestion, and I suggest

          3  that a working committee be formed to research these

          4  negative practices, such a committee will comprise

          5  representatives from ARC, IATN, CLIA, ASTA and OTA,

          6  and the Council's Consumer Affairs Committee, along

          7  with the Commissioner's staff. It is only by working

          8  together can goals be achieved. We cannot fight each

          9  other. We must work together because an unscrupulous

         10  agent is of no benefit to me, or to people that I

         11  may service and may inadvertently go some place else

         12  at some point in time.

         13                 It is easy to drift along from

         14  day-to-day in the routine of our daily work, feeling

         15  that so long as things run smoothly, we should be

         16  quite content to have things as they are. We know

         17  something must be done to cleanse our industry. So,

         18  let us work hand-in-hand together.

         19                 Thank you for allowing me this

         20  opportunity to share some thoughts.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Thank you. And

         22  I look forward to working with you.

         23                 MS. SEGAL: Madam Chair and Council

         24  members, you have heard all of the technical, you

         25  have heard IATN, ASTA, ARC, you know all of the
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          2  words, you knew them before you sat down. So, what I

          3  am going to talk about is personal, what concerns

          4  Muriel Segal.

          5                 Muriel Segal has an agency on Queens

          6  Boulevard. It has been there since 1961. Next week

          7  she will be here 38 years, unless somebody is going

          8  to come along and close her up.

          9                 Our manager, by the way, Bell

         10  Feinberg, has been with me 36 years. Our rent is

         11  many, many times higher today than when I started.

         12  Our expenses are more than ten times what it was.

         13  Our computer costs are tremendous. When a client

         14  came in for a cruise during those years, I didn't

         15  have competition from discounters, from the

         16  Internet, or the small at-home people that gave away

         17  90 percent of whatever they did take in. I made

         18  eight and ten percent commission on airlines.

         19                 But let me tell you something that

         20  happened two days ago. We did four tickets in the

         21  morning. They amounted to $7,532. Total commission

         22  would have been, way back when, $554.80, instead the

         23  commission was $200. Time, effort, work, expenses to

         24  do this. Did this take away from my ability or my

         25  manager's ability to be an honest agent? Are we less
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          2  than honorable? Do we not work as hard or harder

          3  than when there was no cap?

          4                 Are you saying that because I and my

          5  fellow agents are making less money that we are not

          6  above board? Not as considerate of our clients? Many

          7  agents may decide to merge with larger agencies, or

          8  to retire in the near future. That is a decision

          9  that each person makes for themselves. We are

         10  covered with the ARC bond. Your proposal is to

         11  destroy our industry. We understand that there are

         12  bad seeds out there, as in every other industry.

         13                 As Vice President of New York ASTA, I

         14  would beg you to reconsider this bill. It is

         15  devastating and will only serve to cripple our

         16  industry.

         17                 Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Thank you.

         19                 I would like to call on

         20  Assemblymember Adriano Espallat.

         21                 ASSEMBLYMEMBER ESPALLAT: Good

         22  afternoon, Madam Chair, Council members. I am going

         23  to be brief in my remarks but I do, however, want to

         24  say that this is a very important topic to many of

         25  my constituents. I represent the Northern Manhattan
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          2  District of Washington Heights, Inwood and Marble

          3  Hill, and that is traditionally an immigrant

          4  community. In fact, it is considered the gateway of

          5  New York City, as it is adjoined by the George

          6  Washington Bridge, and has served as the cradle of

          7  new immigrants for many, many years.

          8                 And this introduction addresses some

          9  of the needs of my constituents and the small

         10  business owners in my district.

         11                 As you know, and as has been

         12  mentioned earlier, it is proposed that many new

         13  immigrants are really falling victim to

         14  unscrupulousness or bad apples in the travel agency

         15  business.

         16                 Our experience in our community is

         17  totally the opposite. We still have a very transient

         18  community where children often go back to their

         19  native country during the summer months, where

         20  family members travel during the holiday season to

         21  visit their loved ones back home, where there is a

         22  constant going back and forth between families that

         23  are in the quest and in the midst of reuniting. So,

         24  travel agents have and play a very vital and

         25  important role in family in our district, and they
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          2  are doing, I would say, a wonderful job.

          3                 Every so often as in the City you

          4  will hear one or another travel agent that did bad,

          5  but for the most part, I would say that most of the

          6  travel agents in my district are doing a fantastic

          7  job. They are honorable people, they are hardworking

          8  people, they are accountable, they are there and I

          9  am very happy to use their services, as I will

         10  hopefully this summer, unless I have a primary.

         11                 Let me say to you that they serve as

         12  a working class community. In fact, many of their

         13  customers very often reach agreements with them and

         14  they pay their travel tickets in installments

         15  because this is a working class community where you

         16  may have a mother and three children going back to

         17  the Dominican Republic, Puerto Rico, Mexico for the

         18  summer and they may not be able to afford to pay the

         19  lump sum all in one shot. So, as a result, these

         20  travel agents are people friendly. They provide the

         21  opportunity for these customers, these clients,

         22  these consumers, to come and pay them in

         23  installments. And they often almost become part of

         24  the family in doing so.

         25                 So, we are very, very disturbed that
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          2  Introduction 529 may become law. I feel that they

          3  already have some commitments and they are mandated

          4  to pose a fiduciary bond in the amount of 20 to up

          5  to 70,000 with the Airline Reporting Corporation,

          6  ARC, and that guarantees some solvency and that

          7  guarantees some accountability for these businesses.

          8                 So, in order for someone to really

          9  function in this area, and be a reliable, viable

         10  business man, he has to come up with that type of

         11  money to be able to transact with the airlines. So,

         12  there is some stability there already.

         13                 I think that Intro. 529 will place an

         14  additional fiscal and financial burden on these

         15  small businesses, and most of these agencies are

         16  small businesses, and as you know, small businesses

         17  are really the lifeblood of New York City and this

         18  economy.

         19                 In fact, the small mom and pop shops

         20  and travel agencies, such as these, are really the

         21  biggest employer of the City of New York. So they

         22  are not only providing a service to the City of New

         23  York and to our communities, but they are also

         24  providing income and revenues in the form of taxes

         25  that they pay to the City of New York and the State
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          2  of New York. So, they are not only providing a

          3  service, they are giving back.

          4                 And I think that I would concur with

          5  the current Commissioner of Consumer Affairs, a

          6  former colleague, Jules Polonetsky, that perhaps we

          7  ought to take a look at this comprehensively.

          8  Perhaps we ought to really take a look at it and sit

          9  down with the travel agent and sit the consumer down

         10  and yourself and begin to have a lengthy discussion

         11  as to what measures can be put in place to protect

         12  the small business owners, and to protect consumers.

         13                 But I think that to react in a

         14  kneejerk reaction type will really put them in

         15  jeopardy. Again, they are very, very important to

         16  the life of New York City.

         17                 New York City is really made up, a

         18  lot of little communities are made up of small

         19  businesses. I mean, I cherish my ability to go to

         20  the local candy store and buy my newspaper and I

         21  used to talk to the Greek guy there, now he is Arab,

         22  but I cherish that moment. That is part of America,

         23  that is part of New York City, and to really make a

         24  decision that will alter that, is really to make a

         25  decision that will alter the City.
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          2                 So, I am hopeful that you will listen

          3  to some of the testimony that was put here today by

          4  my colleague in City government, the Councilman

          5  Guillermo Linares, and by some of the members that

          6  are here today, and you will really consider the

          7  possibility of having a broader comprehensive

          8  approach to this and sitting down the travel agent.

          9                 We have with us here today a good

         10  number of members from the Dominican-American Travel

         11  Agents Association, which they are very upset and

         12  concerned about what this introduction may mean to

         13  their lives and to their children's lives.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Well, let me

         15  just say to you that when a bill is introduced at

         16  the Council, we don't vote on it the same day.

         17                 ASSEMBLYMEMBER ESPALLAT: No, I know.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: And we listen

         19  and we absolutely will sit down with the industry

         20  and discuss it. But as the Commissioner said,

         21  complaints have gone up 86 percent, and in your case

         22  where the people are paying out the money, which is

         23  very, very nice, what would happen if that business

         24  went out of business and let's say they paid

         25  three-quarters of their fare to go home or, you
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          2  know, on a trip, what would happen to that

          3  three-quarters money that they paid out?

          4                 ASSEMBLYMEMBER ESPALLAT: Well, if I

          5  heard the Commissioner correctly he said that the

          6  vast majority of the complaints are leveled against

          7  businesses that are still in business, that in fact

          8  a small percentage of them are leveled against

          9  businesses that went out of business. So, in fact,

         10  these individuals are still conducting business and

         11  in fact, the Consumer Affairs Division has the

         12  mechanism to go after these individuals, and in fact

         13  the Commissioner stated that he is doing that as is

         14  right now. So, what I am saying to you is that I

         15  feel very strongly, I know there are a few bad

         16  apples out there and we should all work together to

         17  root them out, but to really have a broad brush

         18  approach to this problem serves no one good. I think

         19  that they are, for the most part travel agents are

         20  good business people, they are reliable. I don't

         21  think anyone in their right mind, a good business

         22  person, would want to rip somebody off and pretend

         23  they are going to get more customers.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: I agree with

         25  you, and there are many, many very good travel
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          2  agents, but at the same time we have to protect the

          3  consumer, as we saw on the TV, as I have gotten

          4  complaints in my office, from people who take their

          5  yearly savings to go out and to go on a trip with

          6  their family and when it comes time to go and get

          7  their ticket there is no place to go because there

          8  are no tickets.

          9                 ASSEMBLYMEMBER ESPALLAT: I agree with

         10  you. I think that we should protect the consumer,

         11  and I will be more than willing, my office will be

         12  more than willing to sit down with you and discuss

         13  potential ways on how we can do that, including the

         14  possibility of bringing more funds to the

         15  enforcement branch of consumer affairs. Perhaps what

         16  we ought to do is have Consumer Affairs look more

         17  into these situations.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: I think you

         19  ought to go downstairs and do budget negotiations.

         20                 ASSEMBLYMEMBER ESPALLAT: We are doing

         21  that in Albany.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: I know. But I

         23  think you have to go down, because that is not going

         24  to be a reality, that we can get more people to just

         25  go out and do that. We have a lot of bills on the
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          2  books that have to be addressed, and as it is now we

          3  are shortchanged on inspectors going out.

          4                 ASSEMBLYMEMBER ESPALLAT: Well, I

          5  would like to see the possibility if the City could

          6  look into perhaps increasing the number of

          7  inspectors, and then maybe we can go after the bad

          8  apples. But having, placing a financial burden on

          9  small business owners that are the lifeblood of New

         10  York City is really not the way to go.

         11                 Thank you, Madame Chair, Council

         12  Members, for inviting me. Thank you very much. Have

         13  a good afternoon.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: I also want to

         15  make note that the Committee has reached out to all

         16  of you, a lot of you who are sitting here today. So,

         17  as you can see, when we do do a bill, we reach out

         18  to the industry, we just don't take consumers and

         19  take their word, we want to reach out to the

         20  industry and we want to work with you, and at the

         21  same time be able to be assured the responsibility

         22  of the Committee is to protect the consumer and that

         23  is my main concern, is to be able to work along with

         24  you, protect the little business man, but at the

         25  same time to make sure that the consumer is also
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          2  protected. That is very important to me.

          3                 I would like to call on Jennifer

          4  Willis. Frank Costagliola, I am sure I prounounced

          5  it wrong. And Simon Weiser.

          6                 Who is going to begin?

          7                 MS. WILLIS: Good afternoon. My name

          8  is Jennifer Willis. I am a representative of Astral

          9  Travel. I just have a statement to read on behalf of

         10  my agency. The travel industry is beset by the

         11  stringent policies put in place by the airlines

         12  embarked on making more profit at any cost.

         13                 The industry is regulated by the

         14  Airline Reporting Corporation which in addition to

         15  its thick book of rules requires agencies to be

         16  bonded.

         17                 The industry is further regulated by

         18  IATN, which requires that all bonafide agents

         19  selling travel be registered and carry picture IDs.

         20                 Now, we have the introduction of Int.

         21  529, the bill which if it becomes law of New York

         22  City will impose such a small burden on travel

         23  agencies as to put many of us out of business.

         24                 How could the City Council promote a

         25  measure which will replace hundreds of small
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          2  independent agencies run by hard-working New Yorkers

          3  with chain stores reminiscent of the Rite-Aid

          4  fiasco. This time the chain is protected from

          5  fraudulent operators. Our community has no such

          6  problem and I know of no epidemic of such problems

          7  in New York.

          8                 I do know, however, that m y clients

          9  of 14 years will greatly miss my personal service

         10  and attention to their specific needs. Try getting

         11  this from a chain store.

         12                 I urge you to vote no to Int. 529.

         13  Thank you.

         14                 MR. COSTABLIOLA: Madam Chair,

         15  Committee members, allow me to introduce myself. I

         16  am Frank Costabliola, President of TABS, Travel

         17  Agents of Brooklyn and Staten Island, approximately

         18  450 members.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Speak into the

         20  microphone.

         21                 MR. COSTABLIOLA: Madam Chair,

         22  Committee persons, allow me to introduce myself. I

         23  am Frank Costabliola, President of TABS, Travel

         24  Agents of Brooklyn and Staten Island, with

         25  approximately 450 members.
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          2                 I am a retired New York City

          3  detective of 21 and a half years of service. I have

          4  lived in New York City all of my life with the

          5  exception of the two years that I served in the

          6  United States Army, and I have been a travel agent

          7  in Brooklyn for 17 years.

          8                 The bill, Intro. No. 529 introduced

          9  by the Chairlady and Councilman Dear, to register

         10  New York City travel agents is ludicrous and

         11  unwarranted. Personally, this bill has apparently

         12  been proposed due to the fact that some consumers

         13  have allegedly been hurt by some travel agents, but

         14  the chances are that if the consumers are hurt, it

         15  is the local travel agents, the one who will be

         16  affected by this bill.

         17                 As it is here in the travel agencies,

         18  one has to be bonded and appointed through the

         19  Airlines Reporting Corporation. The problem is with

         20  wholesalers and fly-by-nighters who sold trips other

         21  than through appointed travel agents. If a law has

         22  to be passed, it should be directed nationally

         23  against them. This will solve a major problem

         24  consulting the consumers today.

         25                 With the commission cuts and caps,
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          2  high rents, heavy taxes, it is a wonder that there

          3  are any travel agencies left to operate to serve

          4  local neighborhoods.

          5                 Passage of this proposed bill will

          6  only be an added expense and really make the mom and

          7  pop agency an extinct commodity.

          8                 I therefore urge you to vote no on

          9  this bill. It is not necessary and will only add

         10  another burden on the backs of New York City travel

         11  agents, a burden that travel agents outside the City

         12  will not have to bear, thus place us handicapped in

         13  trying to meet the very stiff competition in today's

         14  travel business.

         15                 I thank you for your attention and

         16  hearing my plea.

         17                 MR. HARRIS: Good afternoon, Madam

         18  Chairperson, and other members of the Council. My

         19  name is Carl Harris. I heard references that people

         20  use, as being an immigrant, it is something that I

         21  listened to a long time ago, but I still don't like

         22  the word, being called an immigrant, I am an

         23  American.

         24                 The reason for me starting out in

         25  this way is because everybody is talking about the
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          2  airlines, or the agencies, but what I want to hit on

          3  is the airlines. We should have some people from the

          4  different carriers to be represented here, because

          5  we are not, as travel agents we are not an agency or

          6  an agent for you. We are appointed by the airlines

          7  or the carrier or whatever it is. So what we have to

          8  do, or what you would have to do, is to get to those

          9  airlines who have appointed those different agencies

         10  to handle their business. We are just a little small

         11  guy. With this type of bill, it is going to cripple

         12  a lot of the small, ethnic agencies, and that I can

         13  tell you, when I started my business in Brooklyn,

         14  some 20 something years ago, after spending 23 years

         15  with a company that is completely out of business,

         16  by the name of Pan American World Airways, I am one

         17  of those products from Pan American that went ahead

         18  with all of that background training and opened by

         19  agency.

         20                 We do have some regulations. We do

         21  have regulations and different things to work with,

         22  which is laid down by ASTA, which I am a very proud

         23  member of ASTA. And other agencies which we have

         24  education for travel agents and education will tell

         25  you exactly what you should do and what you should

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            68

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2  not do, but how many of the other agencies adhere to

          3  those rules.

          4                 We want you to go after the carriers,

          5  the people who are appointing me or you, to be

          6  satisfied that I am qualified to go out and sell to

          7  the general public. We have sat here for the past

          8  hour or two hours and nothing absolutely was

          9  mentioned what the travel agents' commitment is to

         10  the carriers.

         11                 It would be very gratifying if I can

         12  hear within the next month or the next two months

         13  that this bill is killed because it is wrongly

         14  chastising or trying to add something to people who

         15  only have to go by what   certain agencies, ARC,

         16  ASTA, the next one, I am going down the line, which

         17  we have to follow. They tell us what to do. They

         18  appoint us as their representative to service you.

         19  And we have done that very, very good, and I do

         20  thank you for the time in listening in support of my

         21  colleagues here.

         22                 I thank you very much, Madam

         23  Commissioner.

         24                 MR. WEISER: My name is Simon Weiser,

         25  I am with Weiser Travel.
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          2                 Before we heard the testimony from

          3  Commissioner Polonetsky, the percent of the agents

          4  who go out of business is so small, when you

          5  consider the three major airports which operate out

          6  of New York, the millions and millions of passengers

          7  traveling every year, and you have hundreds of

          8  flights, the percent is so small, I greatly pose

          9  that New York City shouldn't even bother with such

         10  small percent of the criminals out there which

         11  doesn't even make up any percent at all when you

         12  consider the millions and millions of consumers that

         13  travel each year.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: I just have to

         15  say that many of the laws that we do at the City

         16  Council obviously aren't geared towards everybody.

         17  There are few individuals such as, you know, quality

         18  of life, you know, graffiti is something we have

         19  handled, it doesn't mean that all New Yorkers, seven

         20  million New Yorkers go out and do graffiti, but we

         21  have to have laws and obligations to handle the

         22  people that do do graffiti, and that is only an

         23  example. So, that is how we do things.

         24                 If the Consumer Affairs said that 86

         25  percent of -- he has 86 percent more complaints this
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          2  year, well then we certainly have to look at it. But

          3  that is a lot of percentage.

          4                 MR. WEISER: Out of 300 you are just

          5  talking about a small percent, which money which is

          6  never collected. And our agency, and all agencies

          7  basically here belong to ARC, IATN and ASTA and

          8  every month ARC scrutinizes the agency and they

          9  watch most agencies, the financials and they see

         10  anything wrongdoing there, they are there right away

         11  on the back of the agency.

         12                 And also I think, just like any

         13  profession, if you pass one license, if you have the

         14  ARC and IATA and ASTA, why do we need to go to

         15  another bond from New York City. I am greatly

         16  opposed to this law.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Was that bond

         18  that you have ever used to pay back consumers? The

         19  one you have through ASTA?

         20                 MR. WEISER: No.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: ARC, I mean?

         22                 MR. WEISER: No. The airlines.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: It covers the

         24  airlines? So it doesn't cover the consumer.

         25                 MR. WEISER: No. ARC is watching the
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          2  agent every month and sees anything financial, an

          3  irregularity, right away they are after the agency

          4  and the agency closes. I mean, every agency knows,

          5  any wrongdoing or anything done is watched by the

          6  ARC and it is regulated. They know what is going on.

          7  They can see the transactions and anything that is

          8  irregular, right away they have the agency.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Thank you.

         10                 I would like to call on Jacquelyn

         11  Wolfer, and Placido H. Rodriguez.

         12                 Council Member Linares.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: Madam Chair,

         14  thank you. I just want to take this opportunity to

         15  explain to those who have been here for quite a few

         16  hours now, to explain that unfortunately I was not

         17  able to listen to the Commissioner's testimony, even

         18  the Assemblyman that was here, because as we have

         19  this Committee hearing, most of the Council members

         20  that, even members of this Committee cannot be here

         21  because we are negotiating, we are in the middle of

         22  a budget negotiation, so we are downstairs. I am

         23  sure you explained, but I also would like to explain

         24  that next door, the Manhattan Delegation of which I

         25  am part of, has a presentation from groups in
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          2  relation to the budgets, so it has been running in

          3  and out, and I just would like to indicate that I

          4  have read the testimony of the Commissioner, which I

          5  believe shares many of the concerns that the

          6  testimony has conveyed in terms of the industry and

          7  hopefully whatever approach we take from here from

          8  this hearing will be one that we will take into

          9  consideration of what the industry means for the

         10  City of New York and for our neighborhood. And while

         11  we are trying to respond to the concerns that the

         12  Chair indicated brought her to this hearing. So, I

         13  just wanted to explain that and I want to thank you,

         14  Madam Chair, for the opportunity.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Okay. Do you

         16  want to state your name?

         17                 MR. RODRIGUEZ: My name is Placido

         18  Rodriguez, I am the President of the Dominican

         19  American Travel Agencies. I am here to say no to

         20  Int. 529. The Dominican American Travel Agencies,

         21  Incorporated, is submitting for your consideration

         22  our position in relation to Int. 529. This

         23  legislation proposes the registration of travel

         24  agencies including other measures requiring agencies

         25  to post, among other things, a bond of up to
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          2  $250,000. I would like to elaborate a little bit

          3  there.

          4                 All agencies are required to post a

          5  bond with the Airlines Reporting Corporation.  Of

          6  course, it was mentioned before, and I would like to

          7  elaborate a little bit more. Every agency, depending

          8  on the volume of sales, has to pose a bond from

          9  $20,000 to $70,000 with ARC. In my particular case I

         10  have $70,000.

         11                 Now, you asked a very important

         12  question; does that bond protect the consumer? In my

         13  sense it does. Why? Because the Airlines Reporting

         14  Corporation, as soon as an agency failed to pay a

         15  report, it will advise the fiduciary bond company

         16  that this company has a check that bounced from the

         17  bank. And if that company continues three times,

         18  that company will have to post cash in the bank.

         19  Meaning that not every agency, unscrupulous agency,

         20  is going to be able to stay in business for a very

         21  long period of time. So, in that direction it does

         22  protect the consumer.

         23                 I would like to elaborate a little

         24  bit more in relation to what the Commissioner said.

         25  Fifteen percent of the agencies that go -- 85
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          2  percent, sorry, of the complaints are from agencies

          3  that are still in business. Fifteen percent is from

          4  agencies that go out of business. Meaning that a

          5  majority of cases are going to be resolved by the

          6  Consumer Affairs Department.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Yes, but I

          8  just have to interject on that, that is usually

          9  after the person has booked the trip and doesn't go

         10  on the trip. It takes time for the Department of

         11  Consumer Affairs to resolve the problem. So, the

         12  person who was looking forward to the trip and put

         13  the money down, yes, maybe some time, maybe a year

         14  later that person gets reimbursed for the trip they

         15  were supposed to take the year before.

         16                 MR. RODRIGUEZ: In addition, I would

         17  like to elaborate, imagine the number of consumers,

         18  travelers, traveling around the world, in 1996 the

         19  Department of Consumer Affairs received about 256

         20  complaints, if we go by the numbers, I as the member

         21  of the Dominican American Travel Agents, a member of

         22  ASTA, we respectfully suggest that this bill be

         23  withdrawn.

         24                 Currently the implementation of Int.

         25  529, we only heard the consumer. The consumer gets a
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          2  diversified number of services from the neighborhood

          3  travel agent. For example, they can get the

          4  documents translated, they can get documents

          5  notarized, and all the services that we provide to

          6  the consumer. If the agencies are forced to close

          7  their doors because they cannot afford, they have

          8  the burden of more expenses in running their

          9  business, the consumer is to be the first to be

         10  affected. Why? The consumer will have to pay higher

         11  prices for their services because of lack of

         12  competition or would be there, meaning that the

         13  consumer will have to pay more for their services

         14  and travel arrangements in addition, the quality of

         15  services will be diminished.

         16                 Int. 529 is an unnecessary law

         17  because:

         18                 (a) The travel agencies are licensed

         19  by the State and Federal Governments.

         20                 (b) Every agency has to have a

         21  mandatory fund, and if course I elaborated already

         22  on that.

         23                 Each airline individually licenses

         24  the agency to issue airline tickets. The ARC and the

         25  airlines cam revoke the agency's right to issue
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          2  tickets at any time.

          3                 This bill will only hurt the minority

          4  travel agencies.

          5                 No other industry has such punitive

          6  restrictions.

          7                 Immigrants rely on the small

          8  neighborhood travel agencies for their travel

          9  arrangements.

         10                 This bill would hurt New York City

         11  because many small agencies would be forced outside

         12  of the five boroughs.

         13                 Thousands of jobs would be lost and

         14  in turn it would create a higher unemployment rate

         15  and more people would apply for public assistance.

         16                 Travel agencies contribute

         17  economically to the City of New York by employing

         18  people and paying taxes.

         19                 The bill does not address a growing

         20  problem in New York but is aimed at affecting the

         21  economic activity of travel agencies in our

         22  community.

         23                 The bill will only duplicate the

         24  existing regulation that now are in place.

         25                 Travel agencies are required to have
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          2  proper qualifications by Airlines Reporting

          3  Corporation and IATN. For example, for every

          4  appointed agency person, we have to have these

          5  identifications, and of course we are here to talk

          6  about how to solve the problem. It may be a good

          7  idea every agent to show the consumers an idea like

          8  this one.

          9                 This is only a suggestion. Thank you

         10  for the opportunity to listen to me.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: I would like

         12  to throw something out at this time, and this is

         13  just, you know, off the top of my head.

         14                 If every agency had to pay $200 a

         15  year, would that put agencies out of business, to

         16  protect the consumer?

         17                 MR. RODRIGUEZ: With all due respect,

         18  we are not talking about $200 here.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: No, I am

         20  talking about $200.

         21                 MR. RODRIGUEZ: Okay. But I would like

         22  to explain what bothered us the most. The fund costs

         23  approximately $25 per 1,000. And in addition to

         24  that, the insurance companies, they do a credit

         25  check on all of us who are going to post a bond with
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          2  ARC.

          3                 So, for me to pay $1,400, almost

          4  $1,600 for a bond that I currently have, if I was to

          5  pay an additional $1,400, we are not talking about

          6  $200 here.

          7                 And if you think about it for a

          8  minute, all of the guys who are going to be making

          9  the monies here are the insurance companies, not to

         10  protect the consumer. There were other ideas over

         11  here that the ones who are making the most of this

         12  are the airlines also. The airlines are advertising

         13  their services through the Internet and they don't

         14  want the agencies there. So, we were thinking at one

         15  time, maybe this bill is being pushed by another

         16  industry. This is only a thing that we are talking

         17  of over here, because --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: I have to stop

         19  you right here and tell you that I resent that.

         20                 MR. RODRIGUEZ: Okay, all right. It

         21  was only a thought.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: The bills that

         23  we do are not pushed by anybody. They are pushed due

         24  to complaints that we receive. They are not pushed

         25  by anybody. The complaints, you heard the
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          2  Commissioner of the Department of Consumer Affairs,

          3  say that complaints have gone up 86 percent. That is

          4  exactly it. If you want to come back in a couple of

          5  weeks, we are going to be doing a furniture bill,

          6  and who are we going to blame that that is being

          7  pushed by? It is only because there are complaints

          8  that have been filed.

          9                 MR. RODRIGUEZ: But I am sorry, I

         10  don't think we should elaborate on that, it was only

         11  a thought.

         12                 I would like to add that considering

         13  the number, the number of consumers there, and the

         14  percentages that are affected, considering that 99.9

         15  percent or maybe more are legit businesses, done,

         16  especially in the City of New York, this bill does

         17  not serve the purpose of protecting the consumer.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Thank you.

         19                 MS. WOLFER: Good afternoon, Madam

         20  Chair and Council members. My name is Jacquelyn

         21  Wolfer. I have been a travel agent for 28 years and

         22  very proud of it. For 18 years I trained and staffed

         23  travel agencies in the New York area. I have been in

         24  operations and the director of training for travel

         25  agency chains and for 12 years I have owned and
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          2  operated a travel agency in New York City.

          3                 Tourism is a major contributor to the

          4  economy of New York City. Travel agents are a major

          5  source of jobs for residents living in New York

          6  City.

          7                 Travel agents provide a service that

          8  consumers need and deserve. They offer a service to

          9  help break the myriad of race and option, and they

         10  help consumers choose travel arrangements according

         11  to their ages, their budgets, their lifestyles. We

         12  are talking right now about travel agency owners,

         13  and travel agency owners, in order to operate and be

         14  able to issue an airline ticket, must be appointed

         15  by ARC, the Airlines Reporting Corporation, and

         16  IATN, which governs the international end.

         17                 In order to be an ARC and IATN travel

         18  agency, travel agencies go through a scrutiny of

         19  background checks from employment to criminal. They

         20  have to provide both personal and business

         21  financials as to their business, and it just doesn't

         22  stop the day they are appointed. Every year on your

         23  anniversary, the powers that be ARC and IATN, they

         24  control the availability of travel agency owners to

         25  be able to write airline tickets and collect
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          2  commissions in this industry, require that we

          3  provide financial statements yearly and agencies

          4  either must put up cash or bonding of anywhere from

          5  $20,000 to $70,000. This is not something they do

          6  once, this is something they do yearly.

          7                 Failure to pay one airline ticket

          8  report in any week, and we must do 52 of them, if

          9  the agency owners do not provide cash or certified

         10  check within 24 hours, because they are automated

         11  now, they will cut off your right to do business,

         12  take away your airline stock and take away your

         13  airline plates.

         14                 Travel agency owners are the ones

         15  being targeted at this point, and I understand that

         16  we want to protect all consumers, I don't think the

         17  problem lies in travel agency owners and licensed

         18  bonded travel agencies.

         19                 As a matter of fact, in the video

         20  that you showed today, nowhere was it even stated

         21  that this was a licensed bonded travel agency. Or

         22  what the credentials. It showed somebody being

         23  ripped off, and, yes, we want consumers protected.

         24  I, as a travel agency owner, want consumers

         25  protected as well.
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          2                 But it is not the travel agencies

          3  that are causing these problems. It is the

          4  pseudo-travel agents that are setting up from their

          5  homes or offices, pretending to be a travel agent,

          6  with no licensing, no bonding, no legal entity, most

          7  of them don't even have a business checking account

          8  to deposit funds and where they have no insurance.

          9                 The target should be those phony ads

         10  in the Sunday Times, "Travel to London roundtrip for

         11  $129.00." These are companies that prey on the poor.

         12  You are talking about ethnic, I don't think this is

         13  an ethnic issue, I think this is a consumer and a

         14  travel industry issue.

         15                 You have got companies out there,

         16  there are at least 30 of them that pick up the

         17  Sunday Times and call them, they are operating in

         18  offices with holes in the wall and 19 cats. Here

         19  today, gone tomorrow, collecting money from

         20  consumers.

         21                 The problem is, and I am adamantly

         22  against this bill for many reasons:

         23                 Number one, you have got

         24  hard-working, professional travel agents that are

         25  licensed, that are bonded, belong to organizations,
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          2  like the American Society of Travel Agents, that

          3  stand for education, that stand for professionalism,

          4  and stand for an integrity in travel and have a team

          5  of lawyers right there ready to help both consumers

          6  and travel agents.

          7                 By this bill, right now you have been

          8  hearing about commission caps, and you know what?

          9  The cost of doing business isn't the problem. The

         10  problem is that with commission caps and with

         11  commission cuts, the profits of travel agencies are

         12  going down, the expenses of licensing, bonding and

         13  insurance, salaries are going up, and the real

         14  problem is that the legitimate IATN, ASTA travel

         15  agencies are the ones that are going to be made to

         16  suffer.

         17                 What you are doing is you are putting

         18  out, this could put legitimate businesses out that

         19  can't afford -- travel agents must be trained in

         20  this travel industry. This is not an industry, and

         21  this is no disrespect to another industry where you

         22  can be trained in 30 minutes and work the counters

         23  of McDonalds. A travel agent has to be trained in

         24  rules and regulations, of airline tickets, of the

         25  availability and trip cancellation insurance in case
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          2  of illness or death in the family. A travel agency

          3  has to be trained to pick the best airline rates,

          4  hotels, tourist packages, cruises, according to

          5  their consumers' taste, age, budget and lifestyle.

          6                 By this bill being approved what you

          7  are going to be doing is driving out legitimate

          8  travel agencies, and you are going to be pushing

          9  them to the illegitimate operating companies.

         10                 Also, you are going to be pushing

         11  them to the Internet and you are going to be taking

         12  tax dollars away from New York City. You are going

         13  to be taking away jobs out of New York City.

         14                 I am actually for a bill, but not

         15  targeted to our IATN, ASTA travel agencies, but

         16  travel agents, people that are operating in travel

         17  agencies that are not licensed, that are not bonded.

         18                 We are a big industry, and the people

         19  who are here today and the people who are in the

         20  audience are sitting and waiting to see what is

         21  going to happen in the industry. Yes, there is a

         22  need for regulation, but not where I think it is

         23  being put.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: I want to ask

         25  you, since you know about the ads in the papers that
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          2  are illegitimate, why isn't your industry policing

          3  this? Why is it continuing to go on?

          4                 MS. WOLFER: Well, let me say this:

          5  When consumers come to me or I see illegitimate

          6  things in the Times, I have written to the Better

          7  Business Bureau, I have written to Consumer Affairs

          8  and I have never gotten an answer, including a small

          9  company operating uptown that was required to give a

         10  certified check of $9,000 in December for travel in

         11  June and being told they would be able to get the

         12  tickets upon clearance of the check. Well, January

         13  came, February came, March came, April, letters were

         14  written to the Better Business Bureau about it,

         15  letters have been written to Consumer Affairs and

         16  nothing was done. There is good and bad in every

         17  industry. I think the focus has to be that the

         18  legitimate licensed, bonded travel agencies who do

         19  go through the scrutiny of background checks and

         20  financial disclosures yearly should not be the

         21  target. You should be going after the illegally

         22  operating companies, the pseudo-agents, because

         23  otherwise you are going to drive the business to the

         24  Internet, you are going to drive it to the other

         25  cities, we are going to lose jobs and we are going
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          2  to lose tax dollars, which we very much need.

          3                 Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: I am going to

          5  say it again. Why isn't the industry policing the

          6  bad people? Why are they continuing to advertise

          7  every week? I mean, we have had industry coming into

          8  City Hall all the time alerting us, working with us.

          9  Why has the industry been so distant from

         10  government?

         11                 MS. WOLFER: The industry is not

         12  distant. The industry has the American Society of

         13  Travel Agents that addresses consumer complaints. I

         14  am sorry to say this, but not like the Consumer

         15  Affairs Department takes three months, they address

         16  it immediately. And they sent out a letter and they

         17  want to know the decision. And let me tell you, you

         18  don't resolve it -- there may be travel agent

         19  members in the American Society of Travel Agents,

         20  but they are there for consumers as well.

         21                 The other thing I want to ask, and I

         22  don't know if you know these answers, but are these,

         23  whatever the percentages of complaints that have

         24  risen, are they legitimate complaints? Meaning, are

         25  they complaints from people who bought a
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          2  non-refundable ticket, a professional travel agent

          3  wrote on the ticket and put on the receipt that it

          4  was non-refundable and they want the money back? Is

          5  there someone that paid for a non-refundable trip?

          6  And also, are these complaints against licensed,

          7  bonded travel agents, or are they against ticket

          8  consolidators, or travel agents that are operating

          9  illegally?

         10                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: The

         11  Commissioner has said they were travel agencies.

         12  Travel agencies. Legitimate travel agencies that are

         13  still, some of them are still doing business. He

         14  said it is easier to go after them because they are

         15  still doing business.

         16                 MS. WOLFER: But what is -- I have

         17  heard everybody here refer to an agent. I have heard

         18  that ticket consolidators are agents. I have heard

         19  that people operating from their kitchen table, and

         20  not that I am against home-based agents, as long as

         21  you are associated with a licensed, bonded travel

         22  agency.

         23                 There is a bill I believe that I have

         24  seen in New York that states if a seller of travel

         25  is not an ARC IATN travel agency or selling through
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          2  an ARC IATN travel agency, that they have to refund

          3  any monies collected within three days, therefore,

          4  eliminating what travel agents have to go through

          5  when we issue a non-refundable ticket.

          6                 Why hasn't this been enforced? And

          7  what is going to be the difference in this bill,

          8  except to get money from legitimate travel agents

          9  who are trying to perform as professional travel

         10  agents and help consumers.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Thank you.

         12                 Council Member Linares.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: Thank you,

         14  Madam Chair.

         15                 I appreciate both presentations that

         16  you have made, but I think we need to be careful

         17  with what is obviously the problem that the industry

         18  faces whenever illegal establishments or individuals

         19  set up shop. Because it not only puts in jeopardy

         20  the interest of consumers, but it undermines the

         21  interest of established agents that are working

         22  within the legal framework, and are held accountable

         23  as such.

         24                 And you mentioned the Internet and

         25  how that also brings the mention which also needs
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          2  closer looking into. And I think what I am reading

          3  from, what I have read from the Commissioner, what I

          4  am reading from your testimony, is that, yes, there

          5  are circumstances here that merit looking closely at

          6  protecting in ways in which we look at the consumer

          7  but we also look at our legitimate industry that is

          8  as much concern with illegal activities that

          9  undermine the industry itself.

         10                 How do we work together to address

         11  those issues as an industry and also as government

         12  officials call with concerns about consumer

         13  protection as well.

         14                 So, that is what I am reading here,

         15  and I don't think we are on separate pages here. The

         16  way I see it, there are problems, but those problems

         17  not only undermine the interest of consumers, which

         18  you have to rely on as well, but also undermine the

         19  interest of the industry, which is in the interest

         20  of the City of New York as well.

         21                 MS. WOLFER: But incorporated into

         22  this industry, what we are being blamed for, is you

         23  can pick up the Wall Street Journal and read an ad,

         24  be a travel agent and travel like a travel agent,

         25  spend $595, what is being done about the card mills
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          2  that are taking money from people promising them

          3  travel benefits, and these people are running around

          4  pretending to be professional travel agents? What

          5  about the multi-level marketing companies that are

          6  taking money and telling people they are selling

          7  travel and have no knowledge. By this bill going

          8  after licensed, bonded travel agencies, you are

          9  hurting the consumer, the very same people you are

         10  willing to protect. When they go to the Internet and

         11  they have a problem, what are they going to do, dial

         12  Help.com? Who is going to come? The reality is you

         13  have got to look at what is hurting the industry.

         14  The card mills, the multi-level marketing companies,

         15  they are advertising everywhere.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Maybe when we

         17  sit down we can incorporate the people that are, you

         18  know, hurting the people. I want to sit down and

         19  discuss this bill. We are not passing it, we are not

         20  voting on it today, we are not passing it today. I

         21  want to work on this bill, and as I said in my

         22  statement before, I want input in the industry, but

         23  I want to feel confident that the consumer is also

         24  being protected.

         25                 MS. WOLFER: I agree wholeheartedly,
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          2  and if there is any way I can be of assistance, I am

          3  an operations and training experts, I am an industry

          4  speaker and train a lot of travel agents, owners and

          5  managers how to operate more profitably and

          6  professionally, and I certainly like to volunteer my

          7  time and my knowledge to help. Because, yes, the

          8  consumers have to be protected and so do the

          9  professional travel agents and there are a lot of

         10  us.

         11                 Thank you.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: The last

         13  point I wanted to make is that while it is important

         14  that when the industry detects underhanded or

         15  illegal activities that take place, it is in their

         16  interest to report them to the appropriate

         17  authorities or investigative agencies, because those

         18  activities undermine your legitimate work.

         19                 I am not sure if I was misreading the

         20  chair's question before as to the role that the

         21  industry would have in regulating.

         22                 I think that it is in your best

         23  interest to report any illegal activities that take

         24  place and thereby, I think that is as far as I think

         25  you could take it, aside from reporting as well to
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          2  those mechanisms that regulate you to whom you can

          3  report.

          4                 MS. WOLFER: I agree 100 percent, and

          5  I, myself, when I leave here today will write some

          6  articles from the trade papers for agents, not just

          7  in New York but all over, to get involved. Because

          8  we are the ones who take the brunt and the burden

          9  when here are problems, and, yes, in any business

         10  you have scams and you have problems. But when you

         11  are a licensed, bonded travel agency, you are under

         12  the thumb of ARC, the Airlines Reporting

         13  Corporation.

         14                 I have to tell you, some people fear

         15  the IRS, at least the IRS gives you a chance to pay

         16  it out. ARC says pay up today or you are out of

         17  business. We are policed, it is the others that we

         18  have to go after.

         19                 MR. RODRIGUEZ: I would like to add

         20  something that I wanted to say before but just

         21  because of time I was running out. The percentage of

         22  the complaints that are submitted to the Department

         23  of Consumer Affairs, when you investigate them, you

         24  will say that some of them, all because the consumer

         25  sometimes does not understand correctly the law that
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          2  governs the airline tickets.

          3                 For example, there are tickets that

          4  say this ticket is non-refundable under no

          5  circumstances.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: I do not think

          7  that the Department of Consumer Affairs would even

          8  investigate something like that because we know that

          9  if you buy a ticket and it is non-refundable, you

         10  take the responsibility and you are told that it is

         11  the responsibility of the travel agent to tell the

         12  consumer that the ticket is non-refundable, and I

         13  don't think that those are any of the complaints.

         14                 MR. RODRIGUEZ: Give me an answer to

         15  this. I had a customer one time that bought a ticket

         16  from me and it was from Pan Am, when Pan Am went out

         17  of business. The customer went to me and said,

         18  listen, I think I have to be reimbursed because I

         19  bought the ticket from you. Sometimes the consumer

         20  does not understand that if we sell them a ticket,

         21  we first of all pay that ticket through the Airlines

         22  Reporting Corporation and that we have nothing to do

         23  with that, but the consumer still doesn't

         24  understand.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: We are not
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          2  talking about that. Consumer Affairs would not take

          3  that, we know the airline obviously is to blame. I

          4  mean this happens many, many times, that, you know

          5  airlines do something. I mean, airlines, if they

          6  make you wait two hours at the gate you get a free

          7  trip to wherever. If you are taking a flight, you

          8  are getting on a flight. You know, airlines give

          9  incentives also.

         10                 MR. RODRIGUEZ: What I am trying to

         11  say is this bill is blaming the industry of legit

         12  travel agencies and there is a lot of other

         13  information that I think you should garner before

         14  you put together a package like this.

         15                 For example, the hotel information

         16  that was mentioned in here before.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: I look

         18  forward, and I have said this a few times, I look

         19  forward to sitting down with all of you and, you

         20  know, those that want to sit down and work with you.

         21                 MR. RODRIGUEZ: And believe me, we are

         22  the first people who try to protect the consumer.

         23  And we tell them, listen, when you go to a travel

         24  agency, I have a seven minute spot on TV on a weekly

         25  basis and I go myself, and I say when you go to a
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          2  travel agency, make sure that it is legit. And we

          3  advise them what to do. So we protect the consumer

          4  too.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Thank you very

          6  much.

          7                 The last witness is Joseph Rotante.

          8                 MR. ROTANTE: Madam Chair, the time is

          9  getting late and I believe I have heard a lot of

         10  what is going on about the industry and all of the

         11  complaints, so I will try to keep my comments brief

         12  and to the point.

         13                 My name is Joseph Rotante, I am the

         14  President of Circle Travel Service, I am a certified

         15  traveler counselor, and I am also past president of

         16  New York ASTA.

         17                 As a travel agency owner working in

         18  the City of New York, I respectfully request that

         19  you do all possible for the captioned bill to be

         20  rejected.

         21                 This bill would not protect the

         22  consumer as intended. It will only cause legitimate

         23  travel agents to close their doors and the City will

         24  lose more tax revenue.

         25                 The travel agents are barely making a
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          2  living now. The things that you heard already about

          3  commissions as low as eight percent and caps, $50

          4  and so forth. They are very much burdened and this

          5  will ruin them.

          6                 The purpose is, it is not the

          7  legitimate and ATC approved bonded travel agent that

          8  fleece the public. It is the fly-by-night person

          9  that calls himself a travel agent, who operates

         10  maybe a trip here and there or a special group tour

         11  who is not an approved, ARC approved travel agent.

         12  These are the persons that a strict law should be

         13  passed for. You can find them advertising in the New

         14  York Times, and the public is so gullible that they

         15  see a low price and then send money without checking

         16  the legitimacy of this agency.

         17                 Now with the Internet, many other

         18  legal travel promoters are coming up. They are

         19  operating from different parts of the country,

         20  selling travel to New York residents, how will this

         21  bill affect them?

         22                 Also, this bill does not cover

         23  unscrupulous and illegal operators that hide

         24  themselves under the vail of religious and

         25  charitable organizations.
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          2                 Now, this bill I understand includes

          3  them, and a lot of people doing illegal things work

          4  under that too.

          5                 This bill will cause a lot of

          6  nuisance, a lot of nuisance cases filling the

          7  already crowded courts of an accomplished nothing.

          8                 I would suggest, Madam Chairwoman,

          9  that you appoint a committee to study the problem

         10  and to see if a law is really needed and how it

         11  could be implemented.

         12                 Having a another law in the books

         13  without teeth would be unnecessary. Such law should

         14  definitely cover everyone selling travel and not

         15  only the legitimate travel agent.

         16                 This Committee should be made up of

         17  primarily travel agents and not only by legislatures

         18  that do not know enough about the travel business.

         19                 As past president of New York ASTA,

         20  and a veteran of 50 years in this travel business, I

         21  would be glad to help you in this matter. In the

         22  meantime, however, you must defeat this bill, the

         23  City Council bill number 529.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Thank you.

         25                 MR. ROTANTE: Some of your comments,
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          2  Madam Chair, I would like to answer some of the

          3  questions that you asked before. You mentioned that

          4  there is a complaint of about 86 percent. Now, did

          5  they ever take account of how many of these 86

          6  percent is legitimate travel agents? How many --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Yes, the

          8  Commissioner testified. They are still doing

          9  business.

         10                 MR. ROTANTE: How many of these

         11  complaints are airline complaints? How many are

         12  there complaints, hotel or operator complaints or a

         13  person that calls himself a travel agent who is not

         14  legitimate. You have to check to find out whether

         15  the person is an appointed travel agent, not just

         16  because he calls himself a travel agent.

         17                 There are people who operate

         18  charters, and they get a group of people together

         19  and they are not travel agents, they just go to the

         20  airline, make a deal and so forth, and if they don't

         21  come up with the money the people are stranded in

         22  London or wherever they are. Those are not travel

         23  agents. Those are operators, somebody who wants to

         24  make a quick buck.

         25                 The other question, Madam Chair, is
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          2  that you requested also why does not the industry

          3  try to regulate themselves? I think you asked that

          4  question also.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: No, police

          6  themselves.

          7                 MR. ROTANTE: Police themselves. Well,

          8  police or regulate themselves and all of that. Many

          9  years ago, I have been in this business, as I said

         10  50 years. I have been to a lot of -- as a matter of

         11  fact, many years ago under Mayor Wagner, the City

         12  tried to put a bill in and we proved to them how

         13  unnecessary it was.

         14                 ASTA tried to put an ad in the New

         15  York Times advising the public to deal only with

         16  appointed travel agents, actually to check billing,

         17  in other words not to deal with illegal operators.

         18  We were told to cease and desist and stop it or else

         19  we would be fined or else we would be legally --

         20  now, this was something we tried to do but they

         21  stopped us.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Who told you

         23  to stop?

         24                 MR. ROTANTE: I will try to remember

         25  now, it was quite some time ago, but it was in the
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          2  City, someone in the City government that told us to

          3  stop doing it because it was restraining the trade,

          4  we were restraining people to go into the business

          5  or to operate as a travel agent.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Even if they

          7  were --

          8                 MR. ROTANTE: They weren't checking

          9  whether those operators were illegal, no. They just

         10  said we have to stop it.

         11                 There are so many in the New York

         12  Times that are just operating just as illegally and

         13  just to please the public. So, those are the ones,

         14  Madam Chairwoman, that we have to put a law. And

         15  believe me, for 50 years I have been pushing for a

         16  law for these people. I had been pushing for a law

         17  when I was in ASTA, acting in ASTA, pushing for a

         18  law. These people are the ones, but not the

         19  legitimate travel agent trying to do business.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Why don't you

         21  give me a list of all of the people that advertised

         22  that you feel are illegitimate, and we will have our

         23  Department of Investigation --

         24                 MR. ROTANTE: Madam Chairwoman, just

         25  look in the New York Times. I would say about 90 --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: No, I can't

          3  pick it out.

          4                 MR. ROTANTE: I would say about 90, 80

          5  percent of the people that advertise in the New York

          6  Times are illegal.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: As the

          8  organization, why don't you give me the list. Don't

          9  give me a list of people that are not legitimate

         10  because they don't belong to ASTA.

         11                 MR. ROTANTE: No, you are right.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Give me a list

         13  of the people who you feel are absolutely

         14  illegitimate and would rip us off. Because we have a

         15  very capable and good Investigations Department and

         16  I am sure that they would be willing to go out and

         17  check this out. They have to be agencies that don't

         18  provide tickets, that you feel do not provide

         19  tickets. Get me the names of the people you feel are

         20  and we will decipher and see and we will do our own

         21  investigation.

         22                 MR. ROTANTE: Since I am the last one,

         23  I hope that you have listened to our problems. We

         24  are trying to bring out the protection of the

         25  public. This is what we want to do, and not to bring
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          2  it that it is the travel agents' fault. It is the

          3  people that are acting as travel agents, those are

          4  the ones that are at fault, and those are the ones

          5  that we have to get after.

          6                 Thank you for your attention.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: Thank you.

          8                 This meeting is adjourned.

          9                 (Hearing concluded at 4:43 p.m.)
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